1	FAYE CHEN BARNOUW (Calif. Bar No. 168631)
2	FAYE CHEN BARNOUW (Calif. Bar No. 168631) RAYMOND E. McKOWN (Calif. Bar No. 150975) MARICELA SEGURA (Calif. Bar No. 225999) Federal Tade Commision
3	10877 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 700
4	Los Angeles CA 90024 Phone: \$10) 8244343; Fax: \$10) 8244380 E-mai: fbarnouw@ftc.gov, rmckown@ftc.gov,
5	E-mai: fbarnouw@ftc.gov, rmdkown@ftc.gov,
6	
7	
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22 23	
23 24	
24 25	
25 26	
20 27	
28	

1	١.	INTRO	DUCT	ΓΙΟΝ	
2	П.	FACT	S	1.	
3 1		Α.	The Pa	Parties	
4 5			1.	Plaintiff Federal Tade Commission	
6			2.	The Corporate Defendants	
7			3.	The Individual Defendants	
8		В.		ndantsuse deceptive and bausive business practices telemarket new zine subscriptions	
9 10			1.	Defendant'ssalespeople misepresent that the purpossef their telemarketing call is to conduct a survey	
11 12			2.	Defendants' salespeople say that they are offering magazines to consumers as a "thank you" for participating in the survey	
13 14			3.	After luring consumers with free magazines as "bait," Defendants begin their deceptive switch" – introducing the idea that the resumer will need to pay a nominal hispping and handling cos aspart of their multi-step attempt to tap consumers into non-candeble, long-term magazine subscription contracts	
15 16 17			4.	Defendantscontinue their confusing and cheptive 'switch" – suggesting that the nominal sipping and handling payments paid on anonthly, rather han weekly, basis- to trap consumers into non-candeble, long-term magazne subscription contracts	
18 19			5.	Consumers think that the end of this call is the end of the transaction, but it is actually only the first part of Defendants' careful plan to trap consumers into non-cancel able, long-term magazine subscription contracts	
20			6.	After the end of this convection, Defendantsull the consumer in two	
21 22				follow-up conversation ander the guisef "double-checking" the consumer's information, and then spring" their trap – selectively recording	
22 23				only part of the second onversation – which Defendant ster useout of context, to make it apper that the converse has greed to a non-canked ble,	
23 24		•	•	long-term magazine subscription contract	
25		C.	them	umers do not learn that they have en esnared until Defendants on front with the "verification recordings which Defendants have carefully engineered	-01
26			to ma	lke it €. Ilab 0.00 0.09200 0cm 1.00.cm 1.00000 0.000m8.	roi F I
27					
28					
				ii	

1				
2			1.	Defendants make abusive and harassing collection calls
2			2.	Defendants send consumers threatening demand letters
4			3.	Defendants' threats are material misrepresentations
5		E.	Consu condu	mers sufer both monetary and non-monetary injury as a esut of Defendants' ct
6 7		F.	Defen switch	dantsknowingly operate their busineessa deceptive and busive "bait-and- "scam
8			1.	Defendantsintentionally make misreprestationsin their initial sales pitch to consumers
9 10			2.	Defendantsintentionally deisgn their salespitch so that it will be confusing to consumers
11 12			3.	Defendantstarget consumers who are more likely to be too buysor too inexperience to realize they are being cammed
12			5.	Defendantslie to consumer potection ageciesand other consener advocates aboutheir business pactices
14 15			6.	Defendants continue their deceptive and abusive business practices despite court orders which prohibited them from engaging in these pactices 15
16			7.	Defendantscondone, and enereward, employees who engge in deeptive and abusive practices
17		G.	Defen	dants' "Subscription Order Service" is also a scam
18 19		Н.		dantsare engging in thesedeceptive and abuse practicesasa "common rise"
20 21	111.			SHOULD GRANT SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON ALL COUNTS OF THE
22		Α.	Legal	standard for granting summary judgment
23		В.	The G	burt should enter summary judgment on CouOtse and Two (alleging ons of the FTC Act)
24				,
25			1.	Legal standard forfinding representations omissions, orpracticesdeceptive under the FTC Act
26			2.	Defendants have made material misrepresentations in violation of the FTC Act in their initial telemarketing calls (Count One)
27 28			3.	Defendants have made material misrepresentations in violation of the FTC Act in their subsequent communications with consumers (Count Two) 20

1	0	The Original device commences independent (reOriginal Theory (horizont) independent)
2	C.	The Court should enter summary judgment tas:CountsThree through St (alleging violations of the TSR)
3		1.
4		
5		
6		
7		
8		
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		
26		
27		
28		
		iv

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

3	FEDERAL CASES
4	Anderson v. Liberty Lobby, Inc., 477 U.S. 242 (1986)
5	Anheuser-Busch, Inc. v. Natural Beverage Distributors, 69 F.3d337 (9th Cir. 1995)
6 7	California Architectural Building Products, Inc. v. Franciscan Ceramics, Inc., 818 F.2d 1466 (9th Cir. 1987)
8	Celotex Corp. v. Catrett, 477 U.S. 317 (1986)17
9	Delaware Watch Co. v. FTC, 332 F.2d 745 (2d Cir. 1964)
10	<i>F.D.I.C. v. O'Melveny & Meyers</i> , 969 F.2d 744 (9th Cir. 1992)
11	<i>Floersheim v. FTC</i> , 411 F.2d 874 (9th Cir. 1969)
12	FTC v. Affordable Media, LLC, 179 F.3d 1228 (9th Cir. 1999) 29
13 14	<i>FTC v. Alliance Communications, Inc.</i> , 1996 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 20373 (1997-1 Trade Cas. (CCH) ¶ 71,685) (S.D.N.Y. 1996)
15	<i>FTC v. Amy Travel</i> , 875 F.2d 564 (7th Cir. 1989)
16	FTC v. American Standard Credit Systems, Inc., 874 F. Supp. 1080 (C.D. Cal. 1994) 30
17	<i>FTC v. Bay Area Bus. Council, Inc.</i> , 423 F.3d 627 (7th Cir. 2005)
18	FTC v. Brown & Williamson Tobacco Corp., 778 F.2d 35 (83
19	
20	
21	

1	<i>FTC v. Sharp</i> , 782 F. Supp. 1445 (D. Nev. 1991)
2	<i>FTC v. SlimAmerica, Inc.</i> , 77 F. Supp. 2d 1263 (S.D. Fla. 1999)
3	<i>FTC v. Southwest Sunsites</i> , 785 F.2d 1431, 1438-39 (9 th Cir. 1986)
4	<i>FTC v. Stefanchik</i> , 559 F.3d 924 (9th Cir. 2009)17, 18, 27, 28
5	FTC v. Think Achievement, 144 F. Supp. 2d 1013 (N.D. Ind. 2000)
6	<i>FTC v. US Sales Corp.</i> , 785 F. Supp. 737 (N.D. III. 1992)
7 8	<i>FTC v. Wolf</i> , 1996 U.S Dist. LEXIS 1760 (19971 Trade Ca. (CCH) ¶ 71,713) (S.D. Fla. 1996)
9	<i>FTC v. World Media Brokers</i> , 415 F.3d 758 (7th Cir. 2005)
10	FTC v. World Travel Vacation Brokers, Inc., 861 F.2d 1020 (7th Cir. 1988) 19
11	Goodman v. FTC, 244 F.2d 584 (9th Cir. 1957)
12	Grosz-Sal
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21 22	
22 23	
23 24	
25	
26	
27	
28	

1	16 C.F.R. § 310.2(I)
2	16 C.F.R. § 310.2(v)
3	16 C.F.R. § 310.2(z)
4	16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(2)(i)
5	16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(4)
6	16 C.F.R. § 310.4(b)(1)(i)
7	16 C.F.R. § 310.4(d)(2)
8	16 C.F.R. § 310.6(b)(7)
9	
10	
11 12	
12	
13	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28	

1	I. INTRODUCTION
2	Defendants Publishers BusinessServices, Inc. and Ed Dantuma Enterprises, Inc. are
3	telemark
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14 15	
15 16	
10	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28	
	1

promulgated pursuat to the Telemarketing and Onsumer Fraud and Abus Prevention Act ("Telemarketing Act)", 15 U.SC. §§ 6101et seq. Sections13(b) and 19 of the FC Act authorize the FTC to iti The FTC's Undisputed Factsare set forth in the "Concise Statement of Undisputedaterial Facts in Support of the FTC's Motion for Summary Judgment, or in the Alternative, for Summary Adjudication of bsues" filed concurrently with this motion.

Corporate Defendants' audits for the Audit Bureau of Circulation. UF50. In all of these 1 2 capacities, Dirk Dantuma hasirect knowledge of both BS's business practices and that many 3 consumer complaints have been made against PBS about these business practices.

4 Jeffrey Dantuma is a Director of EDE and is the top-level manage charge of the Corporate Defendants three Altamonte Springs sales departments, as well as the sales offices in Toledo, and untithe office was closed las year, St. Paul. UF56, UF57, UF58, UF59. He has worked forhis father's magaze subscription businesses for most of the part of the part UF62, UF59, UF57, UF58, UF60, UF63. Through the years, he hasworked for EDE as a calesperson, and 8 supervisor for the verification and ollectionsdepartments. UF63.

10 Brenda Dantuma Schang is a Director of EDE and is the top-level manage charge of the Corporate Déendants' Mami sales office. UF65, UF66. Her responsibilities include handling 11 the Corporate Defendants account payable, overseeing the Corporate Defendants payroll, 12 hardling the Corporate Defendants' books and records, supervising the Corporate Defendants' 13 Miami sales office, and handling coerspondence between the Corporate Defendants ad magaine 14 publishers. UF67. She has worked for EDE and its predecessor for over thirty years. UF68. 15 Brenda Dantuma Schang has also worked in the Corporate Defendants' clerical department. UF70. 16 She hassigned numerous or porate filings on beha of EDE, and isone of the four people who has 17 signing authority over the compared bank acounts. UF69UF39. 18

Dries Dantuma is a Director and the General Manager of EDE's Altamonte Springs office. UF73, UF74. He is thetop-level manager in charge of the companies' verification, collections, and cutomer service desite the is one of the four people who has igning authority over the companies' bank accounts. UF39 He has worked for the Corporate Defendants (and their predecessor) for over twenty years. UF77. In these capacities, he has directly participated in every aspect of the compansied eceptive ad abusive practices UF 73, UF74, UF 75, UF76, UF78, UF79, UF80.

26 27

28

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

5

6

7

9

Defendants usedeceptive and abusive busines practices to telemarket new magazine subscriptions Defendantssalespeople misepresent that the purpose their telemarketing 1.

call is to conduct aurvey Defendants' salespeople, representing themselves as "Publishers Business Services,"

1	contact consumers by claing hundredsof thousandsof busineseseach month and engaging
2	whoever answers the phone. UF81UF83, UF84, UF85. Defendantssalespitch, read from a sales
3	script which Defendantbave athorized, is riddled with deceptive repeatations The pitch
4	starts with a requesto take part in a short üssvey." UF88. Consumes are told that if hey
5	participate in the survey, "we have a small surprise for you, nothing big[,] but it's nice." UF89.
6	The "survey," purportedly made on behalf of PBS's "advertisers," consists of five questions
7	How long have you been employed at _ [name of employer inserted here,] more or less
8 9	than 1year? Now just for our advertisers information, may I ask your age & what you do at _? What do you most often use money order, credit card, or check? Do you do much reading in your spare time? Which publications are you currently receiving? UF90. Contrary to the salesperson's representation that theus vey quetions are being also "for our
10	advertises [sic] information," Defendants are not asking theessurvey quetsions on bealf of any
11	advertise or publishe. UF91.
12	2. Defendants' salespeople say that they are offering magazines to consumers
13	asa "thank you" for participating in the survey At the end of the survey, the consumer is told, "I want to thank you for helping me and with
14	our best wishes you will receive the next 60 issues of [5 magazines identified here]." UF92. The
15	salesperson then sources the onsumer of the legitimacy of this offr, saying:
16 17	Now, let me assure you that there is no catch involved, however, [sic] there is an sound business reason behind the whole thing. The publishers have authorized us to send the magazines I have mentioned to assure their advertisers that their ads will be read. UF93.
18	The salesperson then provides further assurance, stating: "Now you will receive a guarantee
19	stating that everything I am promising you is correct" and "Now we're not going to ask you to buy
20	[] any cash subscriptions or anything like that." UF94. Defendantstelemarketing pitch lease
21	consumers with the impreises that they are being offed a free gift." UF95.
22	3. After luring consumers with free magazines as "bait," Defendants begin
23	their deceptive switch" – introducing the idea that the resumer will need to pay a nominal hipping and handling cos aspart of their multi-step
24	attempt to tap consimers into non-cantleble, long-term magazine subscription contracts
25	After these deceptive asurances the script shifts in direction and beins to introduce the
26	idea that the consumer will need to pay a nominal amount to "defray" or "cover" Defendants' cost
27	in providing what are otherwise free subsciptions:
28	Now the only thing we have been asking people like yourself is to thank us in return by

1 2 3	helping defray the cost of getting them out to you, and I'm sure that you wouldn't mind that, because it's only \$2.76 cents [sic] a week which covers all 6 of the publications and there is absolutely no other charge and it's payable by the month. UF96. The salesperson then reinforces the idea how great Defendants' offer is by pointing out that, "Most
4	people I've talked to today have been more than happy to go along with this and I'm sure that you
5	too will agree that 6 magazines is quite a lot for just \$2.76 cents [sic] a week, right! [sic]" UF97.
6	Defendant'ssalespeople makethis representation to the conusmer legardles of whether the
7	salesperson haactualy spoken to any other conseners that day, and regardless show many
8	consumers haveactually accepted Defendmats' offer. UF98.
о 9	Defendant's representation steave consumers with the net impreises that the magazes
10	they are being offred are "free, and that they are being are do not a nominal fee tover
	"shipping and handling.UF99.
11	4. Defendantscontinue their confusing and de
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28	

1	Defendantspayment suggetions acceptable. h what soundslike the end of theadespitch, and as
2	fur
3	
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14 15	
15 16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28	

in someinstances Defendant'ssalespeople makeinisrepresentations which are not containdein the script, such as stating that the consumer may review the written materials before committing to anything, or that the sbscriptions may be anceled. UF108.

Consumer declarations show that Defendants proceed with the "sale" even when consumers explicitly refuseto accept Defendats' subscription offer. UF117. Further, they show that the supervisor's portion of the call reinforces the impression the consimers form, based on the initial salesperson's arlier representations that the magaizes are free upon pament of noninal shipping and handling charges, and that any "new" terms that the supervisor mentions in this part of the call are voluntary and not a mandrary part of Defendant's offer. UF118.

At the condusion of this convesation, the supervisor tells the consumer that "we'll be calling you bake shortly to confirm this with you." UF119. Within a day or two after that 4.00 0.00 rg BT

	Case	2:08-cv-00620-PMP	-GWF	
1				
2				
3				
4				
5				
6				
7				
8				
9 10				
11				
12				
13				
14				
15				
16				
17				
18				
19				
20				
21				
22				
23				
24				
25				
26				
27				
28				

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	D. Defendarts' collectors and customer service employeesharass and threaten consumers in an attempt to extort hundreds of dollars for the magazine subscriptions. Regardless of whether or not PBS is able to scare aconsumer into paying right away, it will not cancel an account, or the consumer's financial "obligation" on the account, and will continue to demand pament from the consumer. The only circumstace unde which PBS will cancel a account and releass the onsumer from his or her inancial "obligation" is if PBS learns that the consumer has filed accomplaint with the Better Buissess Bureau, a tate Attorney Gemal, or another consumer advocacageng. UF140. Otherwise Defendantshave ther collections department employeesslow up on the invoices with a two-front attack: frequent abisse and harassing telephone calls and threatening demand letters to get consumers to pay.	
10	1. DefendDftom cinc (1.) 36.0000 j 14.6400 0.0000 TD (to s)Tj 20.1600 0.0	
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		
26		
27		
28		

Ι

Ι

1 2 3 4	- "Your account is seriously past due, and must be paid in full immediately. If you fail to pay this account in full, we will move forward reviewing our rights against you for all monies due plus interest and costs, as provided by the agreement PLEASE GOVERN YOURSELF ACCORDINGLY. Very truly yours, John Carlton Please note: Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, you are advised that, unless you dispute the validity of the foregoing debt or any portion thereof within thirty (30) daysafter recept0.0000 Tg5.9200e0uit00a9TJD85(i84)s0e0te0000 TD (s)Tj 4.5600 0.0	000 TD (
5		
6		
7		
8		
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		
26	² The Fair Debt Colletion Practices Act provides that a consumer sends third party debt collector a letterwithin 30 days after receiving the written notice of the debstating that he does	
27	not owe any or all of the monegy, asking forverification of the debthat collector musttep	
28	contacting the consumer. The collector can begin contacting the consumer again if tisends the consumer written verification of the deb, like a copy of a bill for the amount the consumer owes.	

Ι

1	Defendants' extortionate conduct. UF161. Defendants have had hundreds of thousands of	
2	"customers" since January 1, 2004. UF162. From 2004 through 2008, the Corporate Defer	ndants
3	collected \$ from consumers in connection with "Publishers Business Services"	
4	"sales" of new magazine subscriptions, and \$ in connection with "Subscription Order	ſ
5	Services" "sales" of magazine subscription renewals, for a total of \$ UF163.	
6		
7		
8		
9		
10		
11		
12 13		
13		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		
26		
27		
28		
	14	

1	and order issed against Perfect Film and Chreatical Corporation, Perfect Subsription Compay,
2	and Keystone Readers' Service, hc., and a relate 1980 modifying order. UF205, UF206, UF207.
3	In additi
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28	

1	the magazines they are already receiving, and read the SOS script. UF222. The script imp	lies that
2	the SOS salesperson is an employee of the magazine publisher or an employee of the com	cany that
3	originally sold the subscription to the consumer and that SOS has a pre-existing business	
4	relationship with the consumer (
5		
6		
7		
8		
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		
26		
27		
28		

Floersheim v. FTC, 411 F2d 874 (9th Cir. 1969), the Court found that substantial evidene
supported the FTC's determination that the appaeare ad prominent repetition of the words
"Washington DC." on debt-collecting forms from a private collections company create the
deceptive impression that the forms were ademand from the government even though the forms
contained a small print disclaimer informing recipients that such was not the case. *Id.* at 876-78.

In addition, under the FTC Act, a principal is liable for misrepresentations made by its agents regardless of any efforts of the principal to prevent such misrepresentations. *FTC v. Southwest Sunsites*, 785 F2d 1431,1438-39 Qth Cir. 1986) *Goodman v. FTC*, 244 F2d 584,592-93 (9th Cir. 1957). Thus, Defendants are liable formisrepresentations that heir salespeople, slæs supervisors, vefiers ("account manage"), and collectors make, even if the steriore presentations were not authorized.

If consumers are likely to havehosen differently but for the deeption, the misrepresentation is material. *In the matter of Southwest Sunsites Inc.*, 105 F.T.C 7, 149 (1985), *aff*'d, 785 F.2d 1431 (9th Cir. 1986), *cert. denied*, 479 U.S 828 (1986) "Express claimsor deliberately-made implied claims used to induce the purchase of a particular product or service are presumed to benaterial". *FTC v. SlimAmerica, Inc.*, 77 F.Supp.2d 1263,1272 (SD. Fla. 1999) (citing *FTC v. Pantron I Corp.*, 33 F.3d 1088, 1096 (9th Cir. 1994), *cert. denied*, 514 U.S 1083 (1995).

The FTC is not required to pove that individual conusmers relied on the deptive acts or practices. *FTC v. Figgie Int'l*, 994 F2d 595,605-06 @th Cir. 1993). It is also not required that Defendants made the misrepresentations with an intent to defraud or deceive, or in bad faith. *See, e.g., Removatron Int'l Corp. v. FTC*, 884 F2d 1489,1495 (1st Cir.1989) *FTC v. World Travel Vacation Brokers, Inc.*, 861 F.2d 1020, 1029 (7th Cir. 1988).

2. Defendants have made material misrepresentations in violation of the FTC a completion 0.00C5 1.00000 0.0000 0.n.5600 0.0000 cri000i000 cm 0i20.0000 cm

- _

Defendants laim that the only way for the coursers to be relese from the "binding
contract" is to pay a "cancellation fee," which has typically been in the range of \$125-\$150. In
fact, Defendants outinely release consumers from their obligations under the "contract" if the
consumers have ubmitted orthreaten to submit written complaints consumer potection
agencies.

- Defendantshreaten consumers with additional misrepresstations in their collection calls, including that they have a "legal department" and "credit supervisor," that they are members of and will send derogatory information about a consumer's credit to the credit reporting agencies, that they will take steps to garnish a consumer's wages or arrest a consumer, and that they will send delinquent accounts to any outside collection agencies. As discussed in Section II.D., *supra*, these are representations are all false.

These misrepresentations have caused many consumers to pay money to Defendants. Defendants are liable for these misrepresentations whether or not they authorized their employees to make them. In routinely making these material misrepresentations, Defendants have engaged in deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act. Thus, summary judgment should

 3 This definition excludescertain challeng sales not applicable hree.

1	through the use of one or more telephones and involves more than one interstate telephone call.
2	Defendants are thus engaged in "telemarketing."
3	A "person" is
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16 17	
17 18	
10 19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28	

telephone all to induce the purches of goods or speices to discose truthfully, promptly, and in a 1 2 clear and conspicuous manner to the person receiving the call, that the purpose of the call is to sell 3 goods or services. 16 C.F.R § 310.4(d)(2). As discussed in Sections II.B. and II.G., supra, 4 Defendants fail to disclose the true purpose of the call - to sell non-cancellable, long-term magazine subscriptions – at any point during the initial telemarketing call. In fact, Defendants 5 expressly misrepresent that the purpose of the call is to conduct a "survey." Thus the Corporate 6 Defendants are in violation of TSR Section 310.40(2), and summary judgment bould be granted 7 in the FTC's favor on Count Three of the Amended Complaint. 8

9

10

11

12

13

14

4. Defendantshave misepresented the totalost of their magazine subscriptions (Count Four)

Section $3103(\overline{a})(2)(i)$ of the TSR prohibits sellers and telemarketers from is representing, directly or by implication, in the sale of goods or services the total cots to purchass, receive, or use, and the quantity of, any goods or services that are the subject of a sales offer. 16 C.F.R. § 3103(a)(2)(i). On its face this rule requires that the "total cots of the magazines ubscription package be disclosed.

As discussed in Section II.B.5., *supra*, Defendantsdo not distose at any point duringhte
Defendant's initial telemarketing call the total do(shundreds of dollars and mote commonly,
\$717.60) of the magazine subscription package. Moreover, Defendants do not disclose
information that conservers would nede (not only the websly cost, but also the number of weeks or
months of payment and the fabat the "contract'will be non-candeable) to calculate theotal
cost. Thus it is not possible for even a consumer capable of lightning-fast math calculations to
figure out the total cost during the initial telemarketing call.

As discussed in Section II.B.6., *supra*, even in the follow-up conversation that consumers have with the steeperson's Supervisor, there is no discosure that the total costs hundred sof dollars (most commonly \$71760), that the conserver is being alsed to enter into a 'contract," or that the contract isnon-cancellable." Morever, assuming *arguendo*, that the supervisor's disclosures did somehow provide enough information for a consumer to calculate the total cost, these disclosures mutsbe viewel as legally insufficient because the disclosures come after Defendants misrepresent that the purpose of this uppervisor' call is solely to "verify" previously-

discussed information.

Finally, as discussed in Sections II.B.6. and II.C., *supra*, the follow-up verification call with the "account manger" also fails to adequtely discose total cost. Defendants "account marages" did not disclose the total cost o consumers prior to June 2008. Even for those "sales" made atter June 2008 (when Defendants odified their verification call scripts to disclose the total cost), however, these disclosures are legally insufficient because the disclosures are precised Section rdiscussion of the total the purpose this "verification call" is a sized to consumer of the purpose the total Defendants misrepresentation that the purpose this "verification call" is a sized to construct of the purpose the total cost of the first of the purpose the section call" is a sized to construct of the purpose the first of the purpose the purpose the first of the purpose to purpose the purpose the purpose to purpose the purpose the purpose to purpose to purpose to purpose the purpose to purpose to purpose the purpose to purpose the purpose to purpose to

1	get the conserver to agree to accept magazines. Likewise, Defendants' verification depatment
2	employeescall consumers over and overagain until the consumer agreetso go though the
3	verification recording process. Even worse, Defendants' collections department employees call
4	consumers repeatedly, threatening collection lawsuits, garnishmest, a
5	
6	
7	
8	

Ι

1	that "in proper cases the Commission may seek, and after proper proof, the court may issue, a
2	permanent injunction" agest violations
3	
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19 20	
20 21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28	

1	737, 753-54 (N.D. III. 1992) (monitoring); <i>TC v. Sharp</i> , 782 F. Supp. 1445, 1456-57 (D. Nev.	
2	1991) (monitoring provisions); TC v. Alliance Communications, Inc., 1996 U.S. Dist LEXIS	
3	20373 at *5-7, 1997-1 Trade Cas. (CCH) ¶ 71,685 (S.D.N.Y. 1996) (monitoring and reportin	g
4	requirements).	
5	3. <u>The Court should order the Corporate Defendants to pay equitable mor</u>	netary
6	relief in an amount equal to their gross revenues Plaintiff also seeks monetary restitution for consumers injured by defendants' decept	ve
7	practices. This court has broad authority under the FTC Act to "grant any ancillary relief	
8	,eeks15(Iq(15(I11(osrs)14u)10(irphe FT)-16(C At5-7,)-1gtivebcon f 3o)1062oir1.12FS.)10(irphe FTiv
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22 23		
23 24		
24 25		
25 26		
20 27		
28		
_0		
	~~	
	27	

- B. Relief against the Individual Defendants
 - 1. The Court should impose the same permanent bas, injunctions, compliance monitoring, and record keeping provision agains the Individual Defendant specause they directly participated in or had authorito control the companies deceptive ad abusive ads and practices

Each of the Individual Defendantsee also liable for injunctive relief for the law violations committed by the Corporate Defendabtes are of their roles as corporate officers, directors, and top-level managers, and their day-to-day involvement in running the companies.

"An individual will be liable forcorporate violations of the FTC Act if (1) he participated directly in the deeptive ats or had the uthoity to control them and (2)he had knowledge of the misrepresentations, was eckles ly indifferent to the truth or falsity of the misrepresentations or was aware of a high probability of fraud along with an intentional avoid and the truth." *Stefanchik*, 559 F3d at 931 (citing*Cyberspace.com*, 453 F.3d at 1202). An individual's status as a corporate officer gives rise to a presumption of liability to control a small, dosely held corporation. *Standard Educators, Inc. v. FTC*, 475 F2d 401,403 (DC. Cir. 1973). In paticular, assuming the duties of a corporate officer is probative of an individual's participation or authority. *FTC v. Publishing Clearing House, Inc.*, 104F.3d 1168, 1170-71 (9th Cir. 1997); *FTC v. Amy Travel*, 875 F.2d 564, 573(7th Cir. 1989); *FTC v. Medicor*, 217F. Supp 2d 1048, 1055 (C.D. Cal. 2002); *J.K. Publ'ns*, 99 F.Supp.2d at 1203-4.

That each of the Individual Defendantiss aware that PBS isongaged in deceptive and idebooside by that if as its effective adds frame in the Illinois Attorney General's 1991 federal court action alleging the same elceptive and abusive business practices at issue here, and that enaof them was party to the stelement of that action, in which they agreed to stop the deceptive and abusive practices. Moreover, they continue to operate PBS using the same deeptive and abusive practices despite their agreement, in the sipulated preliminary injunction that Defendantes there into with the FOT in this case, to stop.

Moreover, as the companise top-level mangers, the individual Defendants ave the authority to collings the PBS's deceptive and abusive acts and practices.

Defendant

are used taEdward Dantuma's direction. As top-level managers for the FBS's sales deptaments, defendantsDirk and Jefrey Dantuma, and Brenda Dama Schang haveen instructed the salespeople undetheir supervision to read the adeptive alesscripts "word-for-word." As the top-level manager for PBS's verification dependent, Dries Dantuma hasikewise instructed the verifiers under his supervision to read the deceptive verification scripts "word-for-word." This alone stablishes that the Individual Defendats directly participated in the depotive at s and practices. In addition, they structured their employees' compensation to reward high sales volume with no penalty formaking additional misreprestations; by doingos they haveallowed, and even encouraged, their employees to make even more egregious misrepresentations to generate sales. wo The Individual Defendantishtime at @ 5203TD0 00000a0i0 00540002310 M(0,)0009.T200(tid) af 1.100 020 herei

1
2 3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18 19
19 20
21 22
23
24
25
26
27
28